MINUTES OF THE WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE ALLAMUCHY TOWNSHIP COUNCIL
HELD ON AUGUST 14, 2024, AT 6:30 P.M.

The Township Council convened the workshop meeting in person at 6:31 P.M. on August 14, 2024.
The meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance.

A moment of silence was held at this time for personal intentions. Mayor Tuohy requested a
moment of silence for Isobel Weil. Ms. Weil was a longtime resident of Allamuchy Township,
instrumental in the playground construction and instrumental in Rutherfurd Hall. She was 99 years
old. Mayor Tuohy stated that she was a good friend and will be dearly missed.

The Municipal Clerk announced that adequate notice of the time, place, and manner of this in-person
Council meeting has been provided in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act by:

(1) posting said notice on the municipal building bulletin board.

(2) emailing said notice to the press and all others who have requested it.

(3) posting on the official Town website.

1. PRESENT: Mayor Tuohy, Councilwoman Bonanno, Councilwoman Chamberlin, Councilman
Fabula and Councilman Quinoa.

Attorney Beilin was also present.
Township Administrator Tatarenko was not present.

2. At this time, Mayor Tuohy introduced Assemblywoman Dawn Fantasia, representative of
of the 24™ Legislative District.

Assemblywoman Fantasia stated that she was newly elected to the 24" District and

represents just two municipalities in Warren County — Independence Township and Allamuchy
Township. There were also municipalities in Morris County that were added to the 24™"
District.

Assemblywoman Fantasia stated that she attended the Independence Township Committee
meeting and provided updates to the governing body as they are highly impacted by
New Jersey Highlands legislation and the loss of school funding.

Ms. Fantasia stated that Allamuchy Township did not lose school funding and neither did
Hackettstown High School but she feels that the funding level is not where it should be.
Monies are going back to Trenton and supporting more of the urban school districts.

Assemblywoman Fantasia stated that she was advocating ferociously for Northwest New Jersey
since taking office in January. She feels this area is being overlooked. There was an additional
$7,000,000 added in the State budget at the last minute. This last-minute change is linked to
leadership in the majority and their perspective towns. The other issue is recreational grant

monies that are not adequately received. Ms. Fantasia stated for example - Vernon Township is the
largest municipality in Sussex County and out of $25,000,000.00 grant monies available,

Vernon only received $75,000.00.

Page 1 0f 10



Assemblywoman Fantasia was aware that Allamuchy Township is working with the United States
Department of Agriculture in seeking assistance with grant monies for improvements to the
water/sewage treatment plant facility. She stated that access to Deer Park which is a State Park

is also another project that the municipality was working on.

Mayor Tuohy advised that there is a meeting set up with USDA to discuss grant and loan funding.

The Assemblywoman advised that if anyone had any questions to please call or email her.

She stated that her passion is to focus on Northwest New Jersey. She stated that she serves on
the Commerce, Economic Development and Agricultural Committee, Education Committee and
Aging and Human Services Committee. She will advocate for the needs of the municipality.

Mayor Tuohy stated that she just wanted to clarify the access road to Deer Park. The

township is not advocating for the new access point. The Township was advocating for the State
of New Jersey to maintain the existing Deer Park Road which was easier access to the park.

The homeowners living on Deer Park Road closed the existing road down as the culvert on that
road was collapsing. The State threatened to arrest the homeowners for shutting the road down.
Mayor Tuohy advised that she shut it down because emergency vehicles could not get through.
The public has no access to the park through Deer Park Road.

Assemblywoman Fantasia questioned what could be done — does the municipality want the
State to begin the maintenance on Deer Park Road again or should a separate access to the
park be built.

Mayor Tuohy stated that she does not trust the State that they will maintain the road. The
homeowners are satisfied that not a lot of traffic is going down that road. She added that

if this discussion took place a year ago it would be different - it would have been nice if the
State maintained it. The State felt it was cheaper to build an alternate access point then to fix
Deer Park Road and the culvert. This left the homeowners stranded.

Councilman Quinoa stated that he would like to discuss an issue regarding a child that resides

in Allamuchy Township but attends a private Christian school which does not offer any sport
programs. He stated that the parents applied to Hackettstown High School for him to play
basketball. The high school directed the parents to the State. The State advised that the parents
chose to send their child to a private school and the child is not permitted to join the sports program
at the high school. He stated that the high school allowed it, but the State would not allow it.

It is the understanding that if the school receives any funding from the State, then the students could
play sports at the high school.

Mayor Tuohy stated that since the Christian school does not receive any funding from the State
the student is not eligible to participate in the sports program. The parents live in Allamuchy
Township and pay school taxes.

Councilman Quinoa advised that there was a child that was home schooled last year
but was allowed to play golf at Hackettstown High School.

Assemblywoman Fantasia stated it should not matter where the child goes to school. If the parents

Page 2 of 10



contribute to the school system through taxes the child should be able to participate in the sports
program.

Mayor Tuohy advised that she has emails regarding this issue which she will provide to
the Assemblywoman. The rules that are being applied are the NJSIAA (New Jersey State
Interscholastic Athletic Association) Rules established by the Commissioner of Education.

Assemblywoman Fantasia stated that she will investigate this matter. She will also be speaking
to Assemblyman Inganamort as this possibly may warrant a meeting with the State Commissioner
of Education.

Councilman Quinoa stated that whatever could be done would be greatly appreciated. This student
just wants to play basketball at Hackettstown High School.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that she had spent time in Franklin Borough recently as CFO
and Administrator. She has a great fondness for Franklin and keeps in touch with the staff.
Ms. Bonanno questioned how realistic is it that the State of NJ will continue to

fund the NJ Stay Program. She requested Assemblywoman Fantasia’s thoughts on this issue.

Assemblywoman Fantasia stated that she was not confident at all that the NJ Stay Program

will continue to be funded. There is a 12% caveat that says if the budget and surplus is not at

the 12% level to begin with — which means the State must maintain a surplus equal to at least

12% of state spending — then the appropriation will be paused. Everyone receives an Anchor
Payment. The Anchor payments are from two years prior. This year, 2024, the Anchor payment
is from the 2021 taxes that were paid. When Stay NJ takes effect in 2026, residents will still
annually be receiving the Anchor rebate — but the two retroactive years will go away. The money
for the Anchor program will be from the 2025 year for 2026. The money that was put away for
those years will pay for the Stay NJ program. New Jersey has the Senior Freeze Program, the
Anchor Program and now Stay NJ Program. Residents will not be able to triple dip but benefits
will be received by one of those programs. In 2026, Senior Citizens will only realize half the
benefit for Stay NJ — a 6-month period benefit but it will be offset for a full year of what is realized
for Anchor and a full year for Senior freeze. Senior Citizens will either get nothing or get $100.00
or whatever is available. The average individual will continue receiving their Anchor program money
but not realizing that two years of the prior years will never be seen.

Assemblywoman Fantasia stated that by taking that money to half fund a program - NJ Stay -
residents need to be aware of what gets wiped away for the homeowner or senior citizens or
the general population in general including renters. This is a band aid instead of fixing the system.

. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

a. Regular Meeting — July 24,2024 as submitted.
Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilwoman Chamberlin and approved on

roll call vote: AYES — Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.
ABSTAIN — Councilman Fabula.

Page 3 of 10



4. MAYOR’S REPORT:

a. Planet Networks — Mayor Tuohy advised that she had been in touch with Robert Boyle of
Planet Networks. She stated that he had been made aware that Planet Networks was going into
Panther Valley and that was upsetting since the municipality passed a resolution to build
out (internet service only) the entire municipality specifically the unserved areas.

Mayor Tuohy stated that she is pleased to announce that Planet Networks will be coming

into the entire Township. There will be different crews to build out above ground

services and different crews to build out underground services. One of the issues was with the
elementary school. Mr. Boyle advised that Planet Networks really wanted to get the contract
with the school for internet services but the school was under contract with another company.

Mayor Tuohy advised that she had spoken with Superintendent Melissa Sabol a year and a

half ago and advised her that when the current contract was up to please sit down with the
municipality. It was her understanding that Planet Networks was awarded the contract but

then it was pulled because they did not have the infrastructure to do the school. Planet Networks
advised they do have the infrastructure otherwise they would never have bid on the services.
Mayor Tuohy stated Planet Networks will be coming into Allamuchy Township regardless of
whether the school is involved or not. She stated that Mr. Boyle will be filing a complaint with
the State because they must go through the State to bid on the internet service. The State will
decide whether the current contract will be pulled because Planet Networks was the lowest bidder
whose bid was not accepted.

b. COAH — Attorney Beilin reviewed the affordable housing stages and deadlines.
He stated that in October 2024, the DCA will give all the municipalities their calculations
of their obligations. He stated that by January 31, 2025, the municipality either must accept
the DCA numbers or provide their own methodology for calculations. There is a 30-day challenge
period where anyone can challenge the numbers. If there is a dispute in the numbers, there is a
dispute resolution but no one really knows what that is currently.

Assemblywoman Fantasia stated the question is, does the Highlands Act precede Affordable
Housing or does Affordable Housing precede the Highlands Act? As a result, Affordable
Housing did not consult with the Highlands Council at all when the legislation was drafted.
She suggested that the municipality reach out to the Highlands Council for their assistance and
support. She added that the deadlines provided is not plausible.

Mayor Tuohy stated that Allamuchy Township is built out. The Township is comprised of
a great deal of preserved farmland and state park land.

c. Drake Matter — Attorney Beilin advised that he had reached out to the Warren County
Agricultural Board for a status to see what action they will be taking on this issue. The one
property includes the trucks and there is another property which involves materials that is
being brought on to the property. This material should not have been brought onto the property.
The Drakes have received a cease and decease order regarding this matter from Warren County
to clean the property up. It needs to be determined from an enforcement standpoint of what
actions need to be taken next.

Page 4 of 10



Mayor Tuohy stated that she had requested that the zoning officer take a ride pass the
Drake property located off Long Bridge which is considered the trucking operation
property. This is still an on-going problem in the Township. The mayor stated that she
had asked the zoning officer to observe the property anytime he is in the township.

The municipality will end up going to the Superior Court for an injunction against the
trucking operation.

d. KAD Mall Properties — Attorney Beilin advised that a lawsuit was filed by the owner
of the mall over the water/sewer fees and billing issues. The lawsuit paperwork was turned
over to the insurance company and the municipality is waiting on coverage info.

e. Proposed Rails to Trails Property — Attorney Beilin reached out to the administrator of the
estate of the properties that the municipality is trying to acquire. He advised her that the
township cannot pay the amount being requested because of the outstanding taxes, penalties and
interest that is due. He advised that she is trying to work with the other members of the estate
to settle this matter.

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

a. Budget/Finance Committee Report — Mayor Tuohy advised that she had requested the CFO
prepare a financial report on the status of the municipal budget as of June 30, 2024.

CORRESPONDENCE:

a. Mayor Tuohy stated that she will be amending the agenda to reflect some of the correspondence
that was received from certain Board of Education members. She stated that she was copied
on her mayor email and consulted with our attorney. The emails are public record.

Mayor Tuohy stated that there were emails from several board members going back and forth.
She added that everybody knows the school is in a financial crisis, but the crisis seems to have
gotten worse.

The mayor stated that one of the emails explains how there was a reduction in the workforce, and

the budget was approved reflecting those reductions, but those people were hired back and there

is no money in the budget to cover those salaries. The other email discussed the agency account
otherwise known as the payroll account. Payroll taxes have not been paid since January 2023.

There is $1.1 million in that account. The quarterly payroll reports have not been filed. She stated
that she was sure there will be some penalties from the IRS including late fees and failure to file

fees. She was advised that the school is working through it to assist the business administrator

as the account was never reconciled. There is a memo from the business administrator to the board
of education stating that when he arrived in the district in June 2023 there was $800,000 in the agency
account. The BA reached out to the auditors as it was a finding on the audit report. Payroll taxes from
Pennsylvania also came into play as these taxes were never paid. The issue stems back to January
2023 and the BA made the Board of Education aware of the matter in July 2023. The mayor stated
that the BA worked with the auditor, but the auditor could not reconcile for the board as they

would be auditing their own work.

Page 5 of 10



Mayor Tuohy advised that the BOE hired someone to do a reconciliation of the bank accounts and
someone separate to do a reconciliation of the agency account. Superintendent Melissa Sabol
resigned at the BOE meeting and the current BA is the acting superintendent.

The emails the mayor referenced will be placed in the Township’s correspondence book and will
be permitted to be disclosed under an OPRA request. She stated that if there is any new
information that becomes available she will update the Township Council.

. Political Signs — Mayor Tuohy advised that there was an email request from Lisa Strutin
regarding the display of political signs. At this time, she referred the matter to
Attorney Beilin.

Attorney Beilin advised that political signs under the municipal code are considered
temporary signs and allowed to be displayed for 30 days. COVID allowed for early voting
and allowed for signs to be displayed earlier. This issue came up back in 2021 and it was
decided back then to allow for an extended period for political signs to be displayed.

The ordinance at some point may be changed or amended to allow for the display of political
signage more than 30 days prior to the date of election. There is not enough time this

year to amend the ordinance to allow for the display of signage outside the 30-day window.
Attorney Beilin stated that it also did not make a lot of sense for the zoning officer to enforce
the ordinance on political signs at this point.

Councilwoman Chamberlin stated that the email raised a valid question. The township recognizes
the need to amend the section of the ordinance regarding political signage as the ordinance is

not clear. The ordinance is written for the old fashion election day which is now election season.
Ms. Chamberlin added that the ordinance is not clear in a sense that early voting begins in New
Jersey on October 26, 2024. She recommended that the display of political signage be permitted
to be displayed thirty days before early voting begins or no earlier than 09/15.

Councilwoman Chamberlin stated that Ms. Strutin’s suggestion was 30 days before the mailing of
the mail in ballots by the Warren County Clerk’s office. This would allow for political

signage to be displayed as early as August. Display of the signs from August to November

may not want to be a path the municipality wants to go down. She added that according to

Ms. Strutin’s email, the mail-in ballots will be going out 09/20/24. The 09/15 date would be

time enough for political signage to be displayed.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that a realistic change to the ordinance to adapt to the new
election laws are needed but from a practical standpoint the display of political signs any earlier
will turn the township into a litter ground all around town. There is still grass mowing which
takes place August through October and candidates do not always pick up their signs after
election day.

Councilwoman Chamberlin stated that September 15th is 51 days before election day and
at least 5 days prior to the mailing of the mail-in ballots. This should give the candidates

more than enough time to display their signage.

Lisa Strutin,119 Dogwood Way, was present and stated that the 09/15 date is a fair solution.
This will give the candidates, and she stated she is a candidate running for the Board of

Page 6 of 10



Education, but all the candidates even those running for Township Council enough time to get
their signs out. This is a good compromise. She added that after the mail-in ballots go

out there is a potential to lose a lot of voters without signage. The longer the signs are out the
better exposure for any candidate that is running.

Mayor Tuohy advised that the township would change the ordinance to clarify and
accommodate deadlines for mail in ballots in the future.

Ms. Strutin thanked the Mayor and Council for their consideration in this matter.

Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, to allow for

the display of political signs no earlier than September 15, 2024. This exception does not
apply to any other signs and is in effect for the November 2024 election only.

Roll call vote: AYES — Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor
Tuohy.

7. MUNICIPAL CLERK’S REPORT — No report.

8. PUBLIC SESSION:

a. Greg Malejko, 5 Peter Drive, Allamuchy, NJ, was present and questioned if there was a map of
the areas that will be served by Planet Networks. He stated that he is serviced by Comcast
which has the franchise agreement with Independence Township.

Mayor Tuohy stated that she will speak to Mr. Boyle from Planet Networks. She will also be
speaking to Warren County Commissioner Lori Ciesla who was advocating to bring internet
into the unserved communities. The mayor stated that because of Panther Valley Allamuchy
did not make the funding cut. Altice ran the Fios in Allamuchy, but no one can find out
where and Altice is not responding to requests for this information. She stated that hopefully
Allamuchy will make the second round if the State gives funding for the buildout.

The problem is that funding will not come through until 2026, 2027 or even 2028.

Planet Networks is in Byram and pretty much built out in Frelinghuysen Township.

There being no further comments the public session was closed.

9. ORDINANCES - First Reading/Introduction

None.

10. ORDINANCES — Second Reading/Public Hearing

None.

Page 7 of 10



11. RESOLUTIONS

a. #2024-91 - AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO
NISIVOCCIA, LLP FOR A WATER AND SEWER UTILITY RATE
STUDY.

Mayor Tuohy advised that the Township has been talking about a rate increase for quite
some time. The Chief Financial Officer will be providing a lot of the data which will keep the
cost of the study down.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that the State is placing a lot of requirements and mandates
on utility companies like the water and sewer utility.

Mayor Tuohy stated that the township will be putting money away for watermain replacement
projects. She would like the municipality to try to work with the PVPOA on a schedule of when
road improvements are done in Panther Valley. She stated that Sparrowhawk is being considered

for 2025. It was also agreed that the sand filter needs to be replaced. This will be approximately a
$1.6 million dollar project. The Township was going through the I-Bank, but the I-Bank required

an engineer to be on site 8 hours a day for each day the project is going on. This defeats the purpose
of the township saving money. She stated she spoke with the USDA to discuss

funding opportunities that may be available. The grant monies are based on census median income
which is $113,000.00 which is above the $104,000 requirement to be eligible for grant money.

She will be working with CFO on this project.

Mayor Tuohy advised that there are a lot of capital projects that have been done on the
water/sewer infrastructure. The municipality is also dealing with the requirements of the Tier A
redesignation mandates.

Councilwoman Bonanno stated that she had asked the municipal planner and engineer
how many towns will be remaining as Tier B. She was advised zero.

b. #2024-92 - RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COUNCIL OF THE TOWNSHIP
OF ALLAMUCHY AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TRADES,
LABOR, AND MATERIAL FOR LIGHTING AND HVAC OFF THE
INTERLOCAL PURCHASING SYSTEM (TIPS) NATIONAL CO-OP
(FACILITY SOLUTIONS GROUP INC).

Mayor Tuohy advised that a lot of money is being spent on repairs to the existing HVAC
equipment. This will assist with replacing the necessary units with more efficient

and reliable equipment. There is money in capital to do the lighting and air conditioning
upgrades.

c. #2024-93 - RESOLUTION TO EXTEND THIRD QUARTER 2024 TAX
COLLECTION.

Motion by Councilwoman Chamberlin, seconded by Councilwoman Bonanno, carried to

Page 8 of 10



approve Resolution # 2024-91 to Resolution # 2024-93 as presented. Roll call vote:
AYES — Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.

d. #2024-94 - GOVERNING BODY CERTIFICATION OF THE ANNUAL AUDIT.

Motion by Councilman Quinoa, seconded by Councilwoman Bonanno, carried to
approve Resolution # 2024-94 as presented. Roll call vote: AYES — Councilpersons
Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.

Mayor Tuohy stated that she just wanted to mention that she did receive a letter from
Lauren Mela supporting the Noviskey variance application that is before the
Land Use Board.

12. NEW BUSINESS/OTHER BUSINESS

None.

13. OLD BUSINESS

Internet Service for Non-Serviced Areas

W/S Capital Improvements Grant Submission — The project has been authorized

to proceed with the bid process.

Ordinance(s) Review — 2024 Ordinances have been submitted for codification.

Sand Filter Replacement Project

Open Space and Recreation Plan — Land Use Board continues the public hearing process.
Rails to Trails Project Update — No update.

o

o oo

14. PAYMENT OF BILLS (ATTACHMENT)

Motion by Councilman Quinoa, seconded by Councilwoman Chamberlin, carried to approve
the bill list as presented subject to review by the Finance Committee.

Roll call vote: AYES — Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.

15. PUBLIC SESSION

There were no comments from the public and the public session was closed.

16. EXECUTIVE SESSION - 7:40 P.M.

RESOLUTION # 2024-95 - RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION.
Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to go into

executive session at 7:40 p.m. for reasons set forth in the resolution. Roll call vote:
AYES — Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.

Page 9 of 10



17.

Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to go out of executive
session at 7:45 p.m. Roll call vote: AYES — Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno
and Mayor Tuohy.

Motion by Councilwoman Chamberlin, seconded by Councilwoman Bonanno, carried to authorize
Mayor Tuohy to negotiate the professional services contract with Jersey Environmental Services for
continued consulting services with an hourly contract rate not to exceed $125.00 per hour. A

30-day opt out provision will also be included in the revised contract. Jersey Environmental Services
provides consulting services to the Allamuchy Water/Sewer Department. Roll call vote: AYES —
Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.

ADJOURNMENT —7:46 P.M.

There being no further business, motion by Councilman Quinoa, seconded by Councilwoman Bonanno,
carried to adjourn at 7:46 p.m. Roll call vote: AYES — Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula,
Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.

Respectfully Submitted,

Anne Marie Tracy, Municipal Clerk

Rosemary Tuohy, Mayor

Page 10 of 10



